


























Minda Stoneridge Instruments Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 

1. Reporting entity 

 

Minda Stoneridge Instruments Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Company domiciled in India, with its 

registered office situated at A-15, Phase -1 Ashok Vihar, Delhi - 110052. The principal place of 

business is Pune, Maharashtra. The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of Indian 

Companies Act, 1956. The Company is primarily involved in manufacturing of Automobile 

Components and Parts thereof 

 

2. Significant accounting policies 

 

A. Basis of preparation 

 

(i) Statement of compliance 

 

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), read with 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant 

provisions of the Act (“financial statements”). 

 

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 14 May 

2021. 

  

(ii) Functional and presentation currency 

 

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 

Company operates i.e., functional currency, to be Indian Rupees (Rs.). All amounts have been rounded-

off to the nearest million Rupees unless otherwise indicated. Further, at some places ‘-’ are also put up 

to values below Rs. 500,000 to make financials in round off to Rupees in millions. 

 

(iii) Basis of measurement 

 

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following items 

which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount: 

 

Items Measurement Basis 

Certain financial assets and liabilities (including 

derivatives instruments) 

Fair Value 

Liabilities for equity-settled share-based payment 

Arrangements 

Fair Value 

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of 

defined benefit obligations 

 

(iv) Use of estimates and judgement 

 

In preparation of these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates, and 

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and 

liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 

underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are 

recognized prospectively. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty 

and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 

amounts recognized in the Financial Statements is included in the following notes. 
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Assumptions, judgements and estimation uncertainties 

 

• Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax– Note 2.15 

• Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset – Note 2.1(a) 

and 2.1(b) 

• Estimation of obligations relating to employee benefits: key actuarial assumptions –Note 2.43 

• Valuation of Inventories – Note 2.6 

• Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingency: Key assumption about the 

likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources – Note 2.38 

• Fair value measurement – Note 2.33 

• Leases– Note 2.17 

 

v) Measurement of fair values 

 

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial 

and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 

valuation techniques as follows: 

 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs). 

 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as 

far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different 

levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the 

same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 

measurement. 

 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 

period during which the change has occurred.  

 

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 2.32 – 

Financial instrument. 

 

B. Summary of significant accounting policies 

 

i) Current and non current classification 

 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 

classification. 

 

Assets 

 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 

a) it is expects to be realise the assets, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle; 

b) it hold the asset primarily for the purpose of trading; 

c) it is expects to realise the asset within 12 months after the reporting period; or 

d) the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to 

settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 
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Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified 

as non-current. 

 

Liabilities 

 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 

a) it is expects to settle in its normal operating cycle; 

b) it hold primarily for the purpose of trading; 

c) the liability is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or 

d) it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 

the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its 

settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

 

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are 

classified as non-current. 

 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 

cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

 

ii) Foreign currency transactions and translations 

 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the    

dates of transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the 

balance sheet date, are translated at the balance sheet date exchange rates. Foreign exchange gains and 

losses resulting from settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date exchange rates are generally 

recognised in statement of profit and loss.  

 

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the 

exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and 

liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation 

differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through 

profit or loss are recognized in statement of profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and 

translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are 

recognized in other comprehensive income. 

 

iii) Revenue Recognition  

 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account 

contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 

government.  

 

However, Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it 

is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, 

it is excluded from revenue. 

 

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized. 
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Sale of goods 

 

The Company recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was satisfied, i.e. when 

'control' of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were transferred to the customer. 

 

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as follows: 

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer 

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract 

Step 3: Determine the transaction price 

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation 

 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume 

discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as 

specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. 

 

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. 

Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is 

unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms. 

 

Unearned or deferred revenue is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues. 

 

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. 

The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which 

the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an 

existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing 

obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for. 

 

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition: 

 

a) The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer products to a 

customer. The Company assesses the products promised in a contract and identifies distinct 

performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves 

judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently 

from such deliverables. 

 

b) Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price 

could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements 

such as volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and 

incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the 

contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is 

adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the 

customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only 

to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative 

revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The 

Company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of 

the contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct 

performance obligations. 

 

c) The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate selling price for a performance 

obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the 

basis of the relative selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. 
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d) The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied 

at a point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how 

customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created 

or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such 

product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery 

by the customer, etc. 

 

Export benefits 

Export incentive entitlements are recognized as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms 

of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made, and where there is no uncertainty regarding 

the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds. 

 

Other operating income 

Service income including job work income is recognized as per the terms of contracts with customers 

when the related services are rendered. Income from royalty, technical know-how arrangements is 

recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement. 

 

Dividend and interest income 

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the income is established. Income from 

interest on deposits, loans and interest bearing securities is recognized using the effective interest 

method. 

 

iv) Property, plant and equipment 

 

(a) Recognition and measurement 

 

Item of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, 

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.  

 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price, import duties and non-

refundable purchase taxes, duties or levies, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any other 

directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated 

cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which it is located. The present 

value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the 

respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer to note 2 regarding significant 

accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions. 

 

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and 

direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its 

intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which 

it is located. 

 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized 

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or 

loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the 

asset is derecognized. 

 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are 

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

 

A property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the Financial Statements on disposal or when no 

further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Assets retired from active use and held for disposal 
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are generally stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable value. Any gain or losses 

arising disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

Once classified as held-for-sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated. 

 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 

reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

 

Advance paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are shown under non-current 

asset and property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. 

Capital work in progress includes cost of assets at site, direct and indirect expenditure incidental to 

construction and interest on the funds deployed for construction. 

 

(b) Subsequent costs 

 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 

the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component 

accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. The costs of the day to day servicing 

of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

 

(c) Derecognition 

 

             Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing 

the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are 

recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss. 

 

(c) Depreciation 

 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method at the rates 

reflective of the estimated useful life of the assets estimated by the management. 

 

The identified components are depreciated over their useful life, the remaining asset is depreciated over 

the life of the principal asset.  

 

Pursuant to this policy, depreciation on fixed assets has been provided at the rates based on the 

following useful lives of fixed assets as estimated by management: 

 

Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management 

(years) 

Factory building and office building 20 years 

Plant and equipment 10 years 

Tools and dies 5 years 

Office equipment 5 years 

Furniture and fixtures 5 years 

Computer (including laptops, servers and 

networks) 

3 years 

Vehicles 4 years 
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Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and 

adjusted, if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes 

that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management 

expects to use these assets. 

 

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which 

asset is ready for use (disposed of). 

 

v) Intangible Asset 

 

a) Recognition and measurement 

 

Intangible assets comprise of computer software acquired for internal use and are recorded at the 

consideration paid for acquisition of such assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 

accumulated impairment, if any.  

 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite 

 

b) Subsequent costs 

 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 

to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

 

c) Derecognition 

 

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds 

from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible assets and are recognized in the statement of 

profit and loss. 

 

d)  Amortisation 

 

             The intangible assets are amortised over the period of five years, which in the management’s view 

represent the economic useful life. Amortisation expense is charged on a pro-rata basis for assets 

purchased during the year. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible 

asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. 

 

vi) Borrowing Cost 

 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of 

qualifying assets are capitalized. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the 

activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete. Qualifying 

assets are assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 

Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent 

that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an 

expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred. 

 

vii)    Inventories 

 

Inventories which includes raw materials, components, stores, work in progress, finished goods and 

spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However, raw materials, components and 

other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished 

products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost or in cases where 
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material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their 

net realisable value. The basis of determination of cost for various categories of inventory is as follows: 

 

Raw materials, components and stores 

and spares and stock in trade 

: Cost is determined on weighted average basis. 

   

Finished goods  

                       

: 

 

 

 

Material cost plus appropriate share of labour and 

production overheads. Cost of finished goods 

includes excise duty, wherever applicable. 

Work in progress : Material cost plus appropriate share of the labour 

and production overheads depending upon the 

stage of completion, wherever applicable.  

   

Tools, moulds and dies 

 

 

 

: Material cost plus appropriate share of the labour 

and production overheads, depending upon the 

stage of completion and includes excise duty, 

wherever applicable.  

 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net 

realizable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related 

finished products. 

 

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis 

   

viii) Impairment of non-financial assets 

 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 

impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the 

Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.  

 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together 

into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Group of assets that generates 

cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

 

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an individual asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) 

fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an 

individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those 

from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 

recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 

a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 

risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions 

are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is 

used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly 

traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its 

remaining useful life. 

 

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment 

of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset 

belongs. 
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An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated 

recoverable amount. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in 

the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus 

taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognized in OCI up to the amount of any 

previous revaluation surplus. 

 

In regard to assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior period, the Company 

reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer 

exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 

the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 

does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 

amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

 

ix) Cash flow statement 

 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the 

effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash 

receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 

flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are 

segregated. 

 

x) Research and Development 

 

Revenue expenditure on research is expensed off under the respective heads of account in the year in 

which it is incurred.  

 

Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 

losses, if any. Property, plant and equipment used for research and development are depreciated in 

accordance with the Company’s policy as stated above. Expenditure incurred at development phase, 

where it is reasonably certain that outcome of development will be commercially exploited to yield 

economic benefits to the Company, is considered as an intangible asset and amortized over the 

estimated life of the assets. 

 

xi) Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") expenditure: 

 

CSR expenditure incurred by the Company is charged to the Statement of the Profit and Loss 

 

xii) Government Grant and Subsidies 

 

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance 

that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all the attached conditions. 

 

Government grant relating to income are deferred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and 

presented within other income other than export benefits which are accounted for in the year of export 

based on eligibility and there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.  

 

Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current 

liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis 

over the expected lifes of the related assets and presented within income. 
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When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair 

value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption 

of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments. 

 

xiii) Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent 

 

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution 

is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate 

laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding 

amount is recognized directly in equity. 

 

xiv) Employee Benefits 

             

Short – term employee benefits 

 

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 

short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognized in the 

statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service on an 

undiscounted basis. 

 

Defined contribution plan: 

Provident fund: Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits from the provident fund, which 

is a defined contribution plan. Both the employees and the Indian entity make monthly contributions to 

the provident fund (with Regional Provident Fund Commissioner) equal to specified percentage of the 

covered employee’s basic salary. The Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its 

monthly contributions. 

 

Defined benefit plan: 

Gratuity: The Company provide for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement Plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) 

covering eligible employees.  The Plan provides payment to vested employees at retirement, death or 

termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of 

employment with the Company. Liabilities related to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial 

valuation as at the balance sheet date. 

 

Other long term employee benefit: 

Compensated absence: Un-availed leaves for the year are accumulated and allowed to carried over to 

the next year and are within service period of the employees in accordance with the service rules of the 

Company. Provision for compensated absence is made by the Indian entities based on the amount 

payable as per the above service, based on actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. 

 

Other employee benefit plans: 

 

Actuarial valuation:  

 

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefit is accrued in 

the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary 

primarily using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each year of service as giving rise 

to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the 

final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows.  

The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is 

based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having maturity 

periods approximating to the terms of related obligations. 
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Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Statement of profit and loss. Gains or 

losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognized when the curtailment 

or settlement occurs. 

 

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 

assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. 

They are included in ‘other equity’ in the statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet. 

 

xv) Accounting for warranty  

 

Warranty costs are estimated by the Company on the basis of technical evaluation and past experience 

of costs. Provision is made for the estimated liability in respect of warranty costs in the year of 

recognition of revenue and is included in the statement of profit and loss. The estimates used for 

accounting for warranty costs are reviewed periodically and revisions are made, as and when required.  

 

 

xvi) Leases 

 

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116 using modified retrospective approach. 

 

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 

is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 

period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 

the use of an identified asset, the Company assess whether: 

  

the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and 

should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. 

If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified; 

 

the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset 

through the period of use; and  

 

the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the 

decision- making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. 

In rare cases, where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the 

Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:    

 

•  the Company has the right to operate the asset; or  

•  the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be 

used  

 

An entity shall reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease only if the terms and conditions of the 

contract are changed. 

 

This policy is applicable to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 April 2019. 

 

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates 

the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone 

prices. 

  

Company as lessee  

 

The Company accounts for assets taken under lease arrangement in the following manner:  
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The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 

right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 

adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 

incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 

underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. 

 

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from the 

commencement date to the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are 

determined on the basis of remaining lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically 

reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 

commencement date, discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. 

 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, 

including in-substance fixed payments. 

 

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 

when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a 

change in Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, 

or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 

termination option. 

 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 

amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-

use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

 

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases 

that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises the 

lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight- line basis over the lease term. 

 

xvii)  Segment reporting 

 

Basis for segmentation 

 

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it 

may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with 

any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. The 

Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and assembling of safety and security systems and 

its associated components for the automotive industry. All operating segments’ operating results are 

reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions 

about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. CODM believes that these 

are governed by same set of risk and returns hence CODM reviews as one balance sheet component. 

 

xviii) Income taxes 

 

Income Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit 

and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity. 
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(a) Current tax 

 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 

and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current 

tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the 

uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. 

 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 

paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 

enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

 

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss 

(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to 

the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates 

positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 

subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

 

When the  Company concludes that it is not probable that the taxation authority will accept an uncertain 

tax treatment, the Company reflects the effect of uncertainty in determining the related taxable profit 

(tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits or tax rates. The Company reflects the effect 

of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using the most likely amount method. 

 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set 

off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 

simultaneously. 

 

(b) Deferred tax 

 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes 

 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 

recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent 

that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred 

tax assets unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced 

to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be 

realised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the probability of deferred tax 

asset. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 

realised or liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 

reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from 

the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying 

amount of its assets and liabilities. 

 

The criteria for recognising deferred tax assets arising from the carryforward of unused tax losses and 

tax credits are the same as the criteria for recognising deferred tax assets arising from deductible 

temporary differences. However, the existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future 

taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset arising 

from unused tax losses or tax credits only to the extent that the entity has sufficient taxable temporary 

differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against 

which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. 
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Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss 

(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to 

the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity 

 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 

and the same taxation authority. 

 

xix) Earnings per Share 

 

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable 

to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of 

bonus issue, if any, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding 

change in resources.  

 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the year 

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 

year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares except where the results will be 

anti-dilutive. 

 

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods 

presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the 

approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors. 

 

xx)  Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets  

 

A provision is created when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is more likely 

than not that there will be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits to settle such 

obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. If the effect of the time value of 

money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax 

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value money and risks specific to the liability. 

When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance 

cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect current management 

estimates. 

 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events 

and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events 

not wholly within the control of the Company. When there is a possible obligation or a present 

obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or 

disclosure is made. 

 

Provision for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the 

obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are 

recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 

required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of 

such obligation. 

 

The Company does not recognise assets which are of contingent nature until there is virtual certainty of 

realisability of such assets. However, subsequently, if it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of 

economic benefits will arise, asset and related income is recognised in the financial statements of the 

period in which the change occurs. 
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xxi)  Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balance with bank and cheques in 

hands and highly liquid investments with maturity period of three months or less from the date of 

investment. 

 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank, cash 

on hand and cheques on hand as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash 

management. 

 

xxii)  Employee Stock Options 

 

Certain employees of the Company are in receipt of stock options from Minda Corporation Limited. 

The grant date fair value of options granted to employees of the Company is recognized as an employee 

expense, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve, over the period that the employees become 

unconditionally entitled to the options. The expense is recorded for each separately vesting portion of 

the award as if the award was, in substance, multiple awards. The increase in equity recognized in 

connection with share based payment transaction is presented as a separate component in equity under 

“capital reserve”. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of stock 

options that vest. For the option awards, grant date fair value is determined under the option-pricing 

model (Black- Scholes Merton). Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, 

in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures materially differ from those estimates. 

 

xxiii) Financial instruments 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

 

i. Recognition and initial measurement 

            

Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognized when they are originated. All other 

financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair 

value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its 

acquisition or issue.  

 

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement 

 

Financial assets 

 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: 

 - Amortized cost; 

 - Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVOCI’) – debt instrument; 

 - FVOCI – equity investment; or 

- FVTPL 

 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period 

the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 

designated as at FVTPL: 
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- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 

flows; and 

 

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.  

 

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized 

cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 

are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. 

The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies 

to trade and other receivables. Company has recognized financial assets viz. security deposit, trade 

receivables, employee advances at amortized cost. 

 

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 

designated as at FVTPL: 

 

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 

cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

 

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each 

reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income 

(OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign 

exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative 

gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is re-classified from the equity to Statement of Profit and 

Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the 

EIR method. 

 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may 

irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as 

FVOCI – equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 

 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are 

measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company 

may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at 

amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 

mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

 

 

 

Equity investments 

 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 

are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination 

to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company 

may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the 

fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification 

is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the 

instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from 
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OCI to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may 

transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

 

Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

 

Financial assets: Business model assessment 

 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is 

held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is 

provided to management. The information considered includes: 

 

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. 

These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, 

maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the 

duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of 

the assets; 

 

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management; 

 

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 

business model) and how those risks are managed; 

 

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such 

sales and expectations about future sales activity. 

 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair 

value basis are measured at FVTPL. 

 

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and 

interest 

  

For the purpose of this assessment ‘Principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on 

initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit 

risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other 

basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.  

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the 

Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the 

financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash 

flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Company considers: 

 

- contingents events that would change the amounts or timings of cash flows; 

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; 

- prepayment and extension  features; and  

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non - recourse 

features)  

 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the 

prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of 

the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its 

contractual amount, as feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially 

represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also 
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include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this 

criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. 

 

           Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

 

Financial assets at 

FVTPL 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and 

losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in 

profit or loss.  

Financial assets at 

amortized cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 

effective interest method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and 

losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition 

is recognized in profit or loss. 

Debt investment at 

FVOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income 

under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses 

and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and 

losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses 

accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.  

Equity investment at 

FVOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 

recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly 

represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net 

gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to profit 

or loss. 

 

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 

classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held‑ for‑ trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as 

such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and 

losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and 

foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 

also recognized in profit or loss. 

 

iii. Derecognition 

 

 Financial assets 

 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 

which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in 

which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 

and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but 

retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred 

assets are not derecognized. 

  

Financial liabilities 

 

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 

cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified 

and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial 

liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying 
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amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is 

recognized in profit or loss. 

 

iv. Offsetting 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet 

when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and 

it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 

simultaneously. 

 

v. Derivative financial instruments 

 

The Company uses derivative instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts and currency 

swaps to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposure. Embedded derivatives are separated 

from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is not a financial asset and 

certain criteria are met. 

 

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are 

measured at fair value and changes therein are generally recognized in profit and loss. 

  

Impairment of financial assets 

 

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost; and 

- Financial assets measured at FVOCI – debt instruments. 

 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and 

debt instruments at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or 

more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 

have occurred. 

 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit – impaired includes the following observable data: 

 

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that 

whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk 

has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if 

credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of 

the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial 

recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL. 

 

Measurement of expected credit losses 

 

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured 

as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the 

Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

 

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet 

 

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying 

amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to the Statement of 

the Profit and Loss and is recognized in OCI. 
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Write-off 

 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that 

there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that 

the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay 

the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be 

subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with Company’s procedures for the recovery of 

amount due. 

 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for the 

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk 

exposure: 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., deposits and 

advances 

b. Trade receivables that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 

c.  Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL. 

 

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade 

receivables. 

 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 

Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right 

from its initial recognition. 

 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 

determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. 

If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. 

However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, 

credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit 

risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 

12-month ECL. 

 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected 

life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from 

default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance 

with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), 

discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

• All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and 

similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when 

the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is 

required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument 

• Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the 

contractual terms 

 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ 

expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ 

in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is 

described below: 

 

• Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is 

presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the 

balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off 
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criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

• Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the 

balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. 

 

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments 

on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is 

designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 

 

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., 

financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination. 

 

 

C. Recent accounting pronouncements 

 

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended 

Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and III of Schedule III 

and are applicable from 1 April 2021. 
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2.1(a)  Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

(₹ in million)

 Net block 

  Balance as at 

1 April 2020 

 Additions  Disposals  Balance as at 

31 March 2021 

  Balance as at 

1 April 2020 

 Depreciation for 

the year 

 On disposals  Balance as at 

31 March 2021 

 Balance as at 

31 March 2021 

 (a)  (b)  (c)   (d) = (a+b-c)  (e)  (f)  (g)  (h) = (e+f-g)  (i) = (d-h) 

Freehold land 2                        -                      -                      2                          -                      -                        -                  -                      2                           

Building 176                     -                      -                      176                      49                        11                         -                  60                        116                       

Plant and equipment 882                     70                        1                          951                      386                      115                       1                      499                      452                       

Furniture and fixtures 20                       -                      1                          19                        16                        1                           1                      16                        3                           

Vehicles 32                       1                          9                          24                        15                        6                           6                      14                        10                         

Office equipment 14                       -                      -                      14                        10                        1                           -                  11                        3                           

Computer hardware 21                       8                          -                      29                        14                        4                           -                  18                        11                         

Total (A) 1,147                  79                        11                        1,214                   490                      137                       8                      618                      597                       

Capital work-in-progress 30                       78                        79                        29                        -                      -                        -                  -                      29                         

Total (B) 30                       78                        79                        29                        -                      -                        -                  -                      29                         

Total (A+B) 1,177                  157                      90                        1,243                   490                      137                       8                      618                      626                       

(₹ in million)

 Net block 

  Balance as at 

1 April 2019 

 Additions  Disposals  Balance as at 

31 March 2020 

  Balance as at 

1 April 2019 

 Depreciation for 

the year 

 On disposals  Balance as at 

31 March 2020 

 Balance as at 

31 March 2020 

 (a)  (b)  (c)   (d) = (a+b-c)  (e)  (f)  (g)  (h) = (e+f-g)  (i) = (d-h) 

Freehold land 2                        -                      -                      2                          -                      -                        -                  -                      2                           

Buildings 176                     -                      -                      176                      35                        14                         -                  49                        127                       

Plant and equipment 744                     138                      -                      882                      275                      111                       -                  386                      496                       

Furniture and fixtures 20                       -                      -                      20                        14                        2                           -                  16                        4                           

Vehicles 30                       6                          4                          32                        12                        6                           3                      15                        17                         

Office equipment 13                       1                          -                      14                        8                          2                           -                  10                        4                           

Computer hardware 19                       2                          -                      21                        10                        4                           -                  14                        7                           

Total (A) 1,004                  147                      4                          1,147                   354                      139                       3                      490                      657                       

Capital work-in-progress 40                       137                      147                      30                        -                      -                        -                  -                      30                         

Total (B) 40                       137                      147                      30                        -                      -                        -                  -                      30                         

Total (A+B) 1,044                  284                      150                      1,177                   354                      139                       3                      490                      687                       

(ii) For commitments with respect to property, plant and equipment, refer note 2.37.

 Particulars  Gross block  Accumulated depreciation 

 Particulars  Gross block  Accumulated depreciation 
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2.1(b)  Other Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

(₹ in million)

 Net block 

  Balance as at 

1 April 2020 

 Additions  Disposals  Balance as at 

31 March 2021 

  Balance as at 

1 April 2020 

 Amortisation for 

the year 

 On disposals  Balance as at 

31 March 2021 

 Balance as at 

31 March 2021 

 (a)  (b)  (c)   (d) = (a+b-c)  (e)  (f)  (g)  (h) = (e+f-g)  (i) = (d-h) 

Computer Software 60                       5                          -                      64                        37                        8                           -                  45                        19                         

Total (A) 60                       5                          -                      64                        37                        8                           -                  45                        19                         

Intangible assets under development -                     9                          5                          4                          -                      -                        -                  -                      4                           

Total (B) -                     9                          5                          4                          -                      -                        -                  -                      4                           

Total (A+B) 60                       13                        5                          68                        37                        8                           -                  45                        23                         

2.1(b)  Other Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

(₹ in million)

 Net block 

  Balance as at 

1 April 2019 

 Additions  Disposals  Balance as at 

31 March 2020 

 Balance as at 

1 April 2019 

 Amortisation for 

the year 

 On disposals  Balance as at 

31 March 2020 

 Balance as at 

31 March 2020 

 (a)  (b)  (c)   (d) = (a+b-c)  (e)  (f)  (g)  (h) = (e+f-g)  (i) = (d-h) 

Computer Software 56                       4                          -                      60                        27                        10                         -                  37                        23                         

Total (A) 56                       4                          -                      60                        27                        10                         -                  37                        23                         

Intangible assets under development 2                        2                          4                          -                      -                      -                        -                  -                      -                        

Total (B) 2                        2                          4                          -                      -                      -                        -                  -                      -                        

Total (A+B) 58                       6                          4                          60                        27                        10                         -                  37                        23                         

 Particulars  Gross block  Accumulated amortisation 

 Particulars  Gross block  Accumulated amortisation 



Minda Stoneridge Instruments Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

2.2 - Loans

(unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

(₹ in million)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

 As at 

31 March 2020 

Non-current 

Security deposits 10                         9                           

Total 10                         9                           

2.3 - Other financial assets

(₹ in million)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

 As at 

31 March 2020 

Non-current

Balances with banks

Deposits due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date -                       20                         

Total -                       20                         

2.4 - Income tax assets

(₹ in million)

Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 

 As at 

31 March 2020 

Advance income tax (net of provision for tax) -                       11                         

Total -                       11                         

2.5 - Other non-current assets

(₹ in million)

Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 

 As at 

31 March 2020 

Capital advances 8                           9                           

Prepaid expenses -                       -                        

Total 8                           9                           

2.6 - Inventories

(₹ in million)

Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 

 As at 

31 March 2020 

Raw materials (including packing materials) 344                       229                       

Work-in-progress 63                         85                         

Finished goods 20                         41                         

Add: Goods-in-transit 68                         73                         

Stores and spares 2                           4                           

Total 497                       432                       

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes ₹ - (Previous year: ₹ 1 million) in respect of write-downs of inventory to 

net realisable value.
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2.7 - Trade receivables

(₹ in million)

Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 

 As at 

31 March 2020 

(unsecured and considered good)

Trade receivables 916                      625                      

Receivables from related parties (refer note 2.42) 57                        68                        

Total 973                      693                      

2.8 - Cash and cash equivalents

(₹ in million)

Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 

 As at 

31 March 2020 

Balance with bank

   -Deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less 421                      160                      

   -On current accounts 43                        32                        

   -Other bank balances (EEFC Accounts) -                       2                          

Cash and cash equivalents

  -Cash in hand -                       -                       

Total 464                      194                      

2.9 - Other bank balances

(₹ in million)

Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 

 As at 

31 March 2020 

Deposits due to mature within 12 months of the reporting date 349                      526                      

Total 349                      526                      
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2.10 - Loans

(₹ in million)

Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 

 As at 

31 March 2020 

Current

Security deposits 2                         2                        

Total 2                         2                        

2.11 - Other financial assets

(₹ in million)

Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 

 As at 

31 March 2020 

Security deposits

Current

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 13                       10                      

Loans to employees 2                         2                        

Others 2                         2                        

Total 17                       14                      

2.12 - Other current assets

(₹ in million)

Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 

 As at 

31 March 2020 

Balance with government authorities 64                       37                      

Prepaid expenses 3                         4                        

Advances to suppliers 13                       27                      

Total 80                       68                      
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2.13  Share capital

(₹ in million)

Particulars  As at

31 March 2021 

 As at

31 March 2020 

Authorised

12,000,000 (31 March 2020: 12,000,000) equity shares of ₹ 10 each 120                      120                       

120                      120                       

Issued, subscribed and fully paid- up

11,900,000 (31 March 2020: 11,900,000)  equity shares of ₹ 10 each 119                      119                       

119                      119                       

A. Reconciliation of share capital outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number of 

shares

(₹ in million) Number of 

shares

(₹ in million)

Balance as at the beginning of the year 11,900,000     119                      11,900,000     119                       

Balance as at the end of the year 11,900,000     119                      11,900,000     119                       

B. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares at the end of the year

% of holdings
Number of 

shares held
% of holdings

Number of shares 

held

(i)  Stoneridge Inc. 49.00% 5,831,000            49.00% 5,831,000             

(ii) Minda Corporation Limited*# 51.00% 6,068,995            51.00% 6,068,995             

11,899,995          11,899,995           

*erstwhile Minda SAI Limited, merged with Minda Corporation Limited vide order dated 19 July 2019

#including 5 equity shares held with nominee shareholders

C. Rights attached to equity shareholders

D. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting

date:

The Company has not issued any shares for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10 per share (31 March 2020 : ₹ 2 per share). Each shareholder is eligible for one vote 

per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all

preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Name of shareholders As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
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2.14  Other equity

(₹ in million)

Particulars  As at

31 March 2021 

 As at

31 March 2020 

Other Equity

Capital reserve**

Balance as at the beginning of the year 2                             2                               

Add: Adjustment on account of employee stock option -                          -                            

Balance as at the end of the year 2                             2                               

Securities premium account*

Balance as at the beginning of the year 40                           40                             

Balance as at the end of the year 40                           40                             

Retained Earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,506                      1,304                        

Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (including tax) -                          (16)                            

Transferred from other comprehensive income 1                             (5)                              

Net profit for the year 265                         223                           

Balance as at the end of the year 1,772                      1,506                        

Other comprehensive income - Remeasurement of 

defined benefit obligation, net #

Balance as at the beginning of the year -                          -                            

Add: Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 1                             (5)                              

Less: Transferred to retained earnings (1)                            5                               

Balance as at the end of the year -                          -                            

Total 1,814                      1,548                        

Nature and purpose of other equity

* Securities premium reserve

** Capital reserve

# Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation

The unutilized accumulated excess of issue price over face value on issue of shares. This reserve is utilised in

accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Accumulated capital surplus not available for distribution of dividend and expected to remain invested permanently.

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation comprises actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets.
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2.15 Income tax and deferred tax

A. Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

(₹ in million)

Particulars

Current tax

Current year 101                      91                     

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years (11)                      (2)                      

90                        89                     

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (11)                      (12)                    

(11)                      (12)                    

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 79                        77                     

B. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive Income/ (expense)

(₹ in million)

Particulars

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation

Income tax charges to other comprehensive income

C.

D. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit/ (loss) multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020:

Particulars

Rate (₹ in million) Rate (₹ in million)

Profit before tax from continuing operations 344                      300                   

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 25.17% 87                        34.94% 105                   

Tax effect of:

Non-deductible expenses 0.87% 3                          0.33% 1                       

Incremental allowance for research and development expenditure 0.00% -                      -7.32% (22)                    

0.00% -                      -1.33% (4)                      

Tax adjustment for earlier years -3.20% (11)                      0.00% -                    

Others 0.00% -                      -1.00% (3)                      

Effective tax 22.84% 79                        25.62% 77                     

D. Movement of temporary differences

(₹ in million)

Particulars
As at 

1 April 2019

Recognised in

profit or loss 

during 2019-20

Recognised in 

retained 

earnings

Recognised in

OCI during

2019-20

As at 

1 April 2020

Recognised in

profit or loss 

during 2020-21

Impact of 

Change in tax 

Rate

Recognised in 

retained 

earnings

Recognised in

OCI during

2020-21

As at 

31 March 2021

Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for lease equilisation reserve 21                   -                     (21)                     0 -                   -                      -                     -                    -                   -                   

Impact of IndAS 116 -                  -                     28                      -                   28                    -                      (8)                       -                    -                   20                    

Others 11                   7                        -                     3                       21                    (2)                        (6)                       -                    (1)                     12                    

A 32                   7                        7                        3                       49                    (2)                        (14)                     -                    (1)                     32                    

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Difference in book written down value and tax written 

down value of property, plant and equipment
57                   (5)                       -                     -                   52                    (13)                      (14)                     -                    -                   25                    

B 57                   (5)                       -                     -                   52                    (13)                      (14)                     -                    -                   25                    

Net deferred tax asset / (liabilities)            (A)-(B) (25)                  12                      7                        3                       (3)                     11                        -                     -                    (1)                     7                      

For the year ended 

31 March 2020

For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Incremental allowance for deductions u/s 80IA

For the period ended 

31 March 2021

For the period ended 

31 March 2020

For the period ended 

31 March 2021

For the period ended 

31 March 2020

(1)                                                    

(1)                                                    

3                                                    

3                                                    

The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act,1961 as introdued by the taxation laws (Amendment) Ordinance,2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognized provision for 

Income tax for the year ended 31 March 2021 and re-mesured its deferred tax liability basis the rate prescribed in the said section. The credit impact of this change amounting to ₹ 36 million has been recognized in the statement of profit & 

loss.
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2.16  Non-current provisions

(₹ in million)

Particulars As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 2.43)

Gratuity 10                          12                         

Compensated absences 5                            7                           

Other provisions

Provision for warranties (refer note 2.16.1) 2                            1                           

Total 17                          20                         

2.16.1 Movement in warranty cost provision

(₹ in million)

Particulars As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 27                          25                         

Provided during the year -                         9                           

Utilised during the year (5)                           (8)                          

Balance at the end of the year 22                          27                         

Current portion 20                          25                         

Non- current portion 2                            1                           

The Company warrants that its products will perform in all material respects in accordance with the

Company's standard specifications for the warranty period. Accordingly based on specific warranties, claims

history, the Company provides for warranty claims. The activity in the provision for warranty costs is as follows:
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2.17 Leases

As a Lessee

Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:

(₹ in million)

Right-of-use assets
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Buildings

Gross block as at the beginning of the year 66                               -                                 

Transition impact of Ind AS 116 -                             66                                  

Gross block as at the end of the year 66                               66                                  

Accumulated depreciation as at the beginning of the year (11)                             -                                 

Depreciation charge for the year (11)                             (11)                                 

Accumulated depreciation as at the end of the year (22)                             (11)                                 

Net block 44                               55                                  

(₹ in million)

Lease liabilities
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Opening Balance 138                             -                                 

Transition impact of Ind AS 116 -                             149                                

Add: Finance cost 14                               15                                  

Less: Repayment 28                               26                                  

Closing Balance 124                             138                                

Current 18                               14                                  

Non-current 106                             124                                

(₹ in million)

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended

31 March 2021

For the year ended

31 March 2020

Interest on lease liabilities 14                               15                                  

Depreciation expense 11                               11                                  

Expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 14                               -                                 

(₹ in million)

Amounts recognised in Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended

31 March 2021

For the year ended

31 March 2020

Repayment of lease liabilities 14                               11                                  

Interest paid on lease liabilities 14                               15                                  

The impact on the statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows:

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2020

Rental expense is lower by                                    27 

Depreciation is higher by                                  (11)

Finance cost is higher by                                  (15)

Profit before tax is higher/ (lower) by                                      1 

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' with the date of initial application being 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 – Leases and related

interpretation and guidance. The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial

application is recognised in retained earnings at April 1, 2019.

The Company has applied the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on transition. This means that it will apply Ind AS 116 to all

contracts entered into before 1 April 2019 and identified as leases in accordance with Ind AS 17.

The Company has discounted lease payments using the applicable incremental borrowing rate as at 1 April 2019, which is 9.5% for measuring the lease

liability.

Most of the leases entered by the Company are long term in nature and the underlying leased properties are being used as manufacturing plants. The

Company doesn't foresee any major changes in lease terms or the leases in the foreseeable future as per current business projections after considering the

impact of COVID-19.
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2.18   Trade payables

(₹ in million)

Particulars As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 2.19.1) 220                       125                    

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro exterprises and small enterprises 661                       579                    

- Trade payables to related parties (Refer note 2.42) 21                         94                      

Total 902                       798                    

(₹ in million)

S.No.     Particulars As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

(i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the

end of period:

- Principal amount 218                       120                    

- Interest thereon -                        -                    

218                       120                    

(ii) the amount of interest paid in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment

made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day:

- Principal amount 436                       462                    

- Interest thereon -                        -                    

-                        -                    

(iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified

under this Act

2                           5                        

2                           5                        

(iv)   the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. 2                           5                        

2                           5                        

2.19   Other financial liabilities

(₹ in million)

Particulars As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Salaries, wages and bonus payable 50                         51                      

Capital creditors 13                         2                        

Total 63                         53                      

2.20   Other current liabilities

(₹ in million)

Particulars As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Statutory dues payable 13                         12                      

Advances from customers 21                         27                      

Total 34                         39                      

2.21   Provisions

(₹ in million)

Particulars As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Current

 Provision for employee benefits (refer note 2.43)

   -Gratuity -                        -                    

   -Compensated absence -                        -                    

Others 

   -Provision for warranties (refer note 2.16.1) 20                         25                      

Total 20                         25                      

2.22   Current tax liabilities

(₹ in million)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Provision for income tax (net of advance tax ) 7                           -                    

Total 7                           -                    

Based on the information available, there are certain vendors who have confirmed that they are covered under the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Disclosures as required by section 22 of ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006, are given below:

2.18.1 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006



Minda Stoneridge Instruments Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

2.23 Revenue from operations

(₹ in million)

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2021

For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Sale of products

 - Manufactured goods 3,793                           3,740                              

Other operating revenues

 - Technical know-how and service income 79                                41                                   

 - Sale of scrap 4                                  5                                     

 - Exchange fluctuation (net) 5                                  -                                 

 - Export incentives 15                                24                                   

Other operating revenues 103                              70                                   

Total 3,895                           3,810                              

2.24 Other income

(₹ in million)

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2021

For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Interest income on fixed deposits 40                                36                                   

Miscellaneous income 6                                  -                                 

Provision/ liabilities no longer required written back 16                                24                                   

Total 62                                60                                   

2.25 Cost of materials consumed

(₹ in million)

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2021

For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Raw materials consumed

Opening stock 229                              210                                 

Add: Purchases during the year 2,723                           2,585                              

2,952                           2,795                              

Less: Closing stock 344                              229                                 

2,609                           2,566                              
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2.26 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

(₹ in million)

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2021

For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Finished goods

Opening stock 114                                 67                                   

Less: Closing stock 88                                   114                                 

26                                   (47)                                  

Work-in-progress

Opening stock 85                                   61                                   

Less: Closing stock 63                                   85                                   

22                                   (24)                                  

48                                   (71)                                  

2.27 Employee benefits expense

(₹ in million)

 Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2021

For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Salaries, wages, bonus and allowances 394                                 463                                 

Contribution to provident fund and other funds 30                                   38                                   

Employees stock compensation expense -                                  -                                  

Staff welfare expenses 12                                   15                                   

Total 435                                 516                                 

2.28 Finance Costs

(₹ in million)

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2021

For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Interest expenses 3                                     6                                     

Interest expense on lease liabilities 14                                   15                                   

Other borrowing costs 1                                     1                                     

Total 17                                   22                                   
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2.29 Other Expenses

(₹ in million)

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2021

For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Jobwork charges 1                                     2                                   

Consumption of stores and spare parts and packing materials 71                                   78                                 

Power and fuel (net of recovery) 28                                   33                                 

Rental charges (refer note 2.17) 14                                   -                                

Repair and maintenance

 - Plant and machinery 6                                     12                                 

 - Building 6                                     3                                   

 - Others 7                                     10                                 

Travelling and conveyance 2                                     25                                 

Legal and professional fees 56                                   26                                 

Auditor Remuneration (refer to note 2.30) 2                                     2                                   

Communication expenses 2                                     4                                   

Management fees 56                                   56                                 

Insurance expenses 6                                     5                                   

Rates and taxes 1                                     2                                   

Exchange fluctuation (net) -                                 10                                 

Warranty expenses -                                 10                                 

Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment (net) 2                                     -                                

Advertisement and Business promotion 0                                     -                                

Freight and forwarding expenses 43                                   43                                 

Corporate Social Responsibility (refer to note 2.39) 7                                     6                                   

Design and development expenses 8                                     29                                 

Miscellaneous 30                                   21                                 

Total 348                                 377                                

2.30 Auditors' remuneration (excluding GST)

Legal and professional expense includes auditors’ remuneration as follows:

(₹ in million)

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2021

For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Statutory audit 2                                     2                                   

Others -                                 -                                

Total 2                                     2                                    
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2.31 Earnings per share

(₹ in million)

Particulars Units
Year ended

31 March 2021

Year ended

31 March 2020

Net Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders ₹ 265                     223                    

Number of weighted average equity share of ₹ 10 each 

:

Number of share at the end of the year No. 11,900,000         11,900,000        

Basic and diluted earning per equity share of face 

value of ₹ 10 each
₹ 22.27                  18.74                 

2.32 Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management

a. Financial instruments – by category and fair values hierarchy

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

i. As on 31 March 2021 (₹ in million)

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets 

Non-current

  (i) Loans -                     -                      10                      10                      -              -             -             

Current

  (i) Trade receivables -                     -                      973                    973                    -              -             -             

  (ii) Cash and cash equivalents -                     -                      464                    464                    -              -             -             

  (iii) Other bank balances 349                    349                    -              -             -             

  (iv) Loans -                     -                      2                        2                        -              -             -             

  (v) Other financial assets -                     -                      17                      17                      -              -             -             

Total -                    -                      1,815                 1,815                 

Financial liabilities 

Non-current

  (i) Lease liabilities -                     -                      106                    106                    -              -             -             

Current 

  (i) Lease liabilities -                     -                      18                      18                      -              -             -             

  (ii) Trade payables -                     -                      902                    902                    -              -             -             

  (iii) Other financial liabilities -                     -                      63                      63                      -              -             -             

Total -                    -                      1,089                 1,089                 

ii. As on 31 March 2020 (₹ in million)

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets 

Non-current

  (i) Loans -                     -                      9                        9                        -              -             -             

  (ii) Other financial assets -                     -                      20                      20                      -              -             -             

Current

  (i) Trade receivables -                     -                      693                    693                    -              -             -             

  (ii) Cash and cash equivalents -                     -                      194                    194                    -              -             -             

  (iii) Other bank balances -                     -                      526                    526                    -              -             -             

  (iv) Loans -                     -                      2                        2                        -              -             -             

  (v) Other financial assets -                     -                      14                      14                      -              -             -             

Total -                    -                      1,458                 1,458                 

Financial liabilities 

Non-current

  (i) Lease liabilities -                     -                      124                    124                    -              -             -             

Current -                     

  (i) Lease liabilities -                     -                      14                      14                      -              -             -             

  (i) Trade payables -                     -                      798                    798                    -              -             -             

  (ii) Other financial liabilities -                     -                      53                      53                      -              -             -             

Total -                    -                      989                    989                    

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding for the year.

The management assessed that the fair values of short term financial assets and liabilities significantly approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term

maturities of these instruments. Accordingly, management has not disclosed fair values for financial instruments such as trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash

equivalents, other current assets, interest accrued on fixed deposits, other current liabilities etc. 

The fair value of non-current financial assets and financial liabilities are determined by discounting future cash flows using current rates of instruments with similar terms

and credit risk. The current rates used do not reflect significant changes from the discount rates used initially. Therefore, the carrying value of these instruments measured

at amortised cost approximate their fair value.

Carrying Value Fair value measurement using
Particulars

Particulars
Carrying Value Fair value measurement using
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2.32 Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Valuation processes

2.33 Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

 - Credit risk;

 - Liquidity risk; and

 - Market risk - Foreign exchange;

Risk management framework

(i) Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance Sheet:

(₹ in million)

Particulars
As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Trade receivables 973                    693                     

Cash and cash equivalents 464                    194                     

Other bank balances 349                    526                     

Loans 12                      11                       

Other financial assets 17                      34                       

Movement in the loss allowance in respect of trade receivables:

Particulars
As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year -                     -                      

Impairment loss recognised / (reversed) -                     -                      

Amount written off -                     -                      

Balance at the end of the year -                     -                      

As per Ind AS 109, the Company uses Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the

expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. The provision matrix takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors such

as Company’s historical experience for customers. The reversal for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31

March 2020 was ₹ Nil. 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurements of the fair values. This includes a team that has overall responsibility for

overseeing all significant fair value measurements and reports to senior management. The team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation

adjustments.

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The board of directors

have authorised senior management to establish the processes, who ensures that executive management controls risks through the mechanism of properly defined

framework. 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risks limits and controls, to monitor

risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company,

through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand

their roles and obligations.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments exclusively for hedging financial risks that arise from its foreign exchange related exposures.

The Company manages its credit risk through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring credit worthiness of customers to which the

Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally

from the Company’s receivables from customers, loans.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating

agencies.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenue earned

from customers primarily located in India. The Company does monitor the economic environment in which it operates. 

Specific valuation techniques used to value non current financial assets and liabilities for whom the fair values have been determined based on present values and the

appropriate discount rates of the Company at each balance sheet date. The discount rate is based on the incremental borrowing rate of the Company at each balance sheet

date.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,

other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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2.33 Financial risk management (continued)

a) Expected credit loss for loans and security deposits

As at 31 March 2021

(₹ in million)

Asset group

Estimated gross 

carrying amount 

at

default

Expected

probability

of default

Expected

credit loss

Carrying

amount net of

impairment

provision

Loans to employee 2                          0% -                2                    

Security Deposits 12                        0% -                12                  

Financial assets for which 

credit risk has increased 

significantly and not credit

-impaired

NA NA NA NA NA

Financial assets for which 

credit risk has increased 

significantly and credit

-impaired

NA NA NA NA NA

As at 31 March 2020

(₹ in million)

Asset group

Estimated gross 

carrying amount 

at

default

Expected

probability

of default

Expected

credit loss

Carrying

amount net of

impairment

provision

Loans to employee 2                          0% -                2                    

Security Deposits 11                        0% -                11                  

Financial assets for which 

credit risk has increased 

significantly and not credit

-impaired
NA NA NA NA NA

Financial assets for which 

credit risk has increased 

significantly and credit

-impaired

NA NA NA NA NA

Loss allowance 

measured at 12 month 

expected credit loss

Financial assets for which 

credit risk has not increased 

significantly since initial 

recognition

Loss allowance 

measured at life-time 

expected credit loss

Particulars

Financial assets for which 

credit risk has not increased 

significantly since initial 

recognition

Loss allowance 

measured at 12 month 

expected credit loss

Loss allowance 

measured at life-time 

expected credit loss

Particulars
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2.33 Financial risk management (continued)

b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:

(₹ in million)

Current (not past due) 903                      547                

1 to 30 days past due 31                        101                

31 to 60 days past due 6                          21                  

61 to 90 days past due 17                        5                    

More than 90 days past due* 16                        18                  

Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of impairment) 973                      693                

*The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 90 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment

behavior.

Particulars Gross carrying amount

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020
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2.33 Financial risk management (continued)

(ii) Liquidity risk

 The Company’s liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:

- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.

- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

- Maintaining diversified credit lines.

I. Financing arrangements

The Company had access to undrawn borrowing facilities of ₹ 230 million (31 March 2020: ₹ 320 million) at the end of the reporting period.

II. Maturities of financial liabilities

(₹ in million)

6 months

or less
6-12 months 1–2 years 2–5 years

More than

5 years
Total

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities* 106               -                     -                       28                    48                   95             171               

Current liabilities

Lease liabilities 18                 9                         9                           -                   -                 -            18                 

Trade payables 902               876                    22                         4                      -                 -            902               

Other financial liabilities 63                 63                      -                       -                   -                 -            63                 

Total 1,089            948                    31                         32                    48                   95             1,154            

* Carrying value represents discounted value as at 31 March 2021

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled

by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach for managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses

or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including total cash and cash equivalent and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent of

₹ 813 millions as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: ₹ 740 millions), anticipated future internally generated funds from operations, and its fully

available, revolving undrawn credit facility will enable it to meet its future known obligations in the ordinary course of business. However, if a

liquidity needs were to arise, the Company believes it has access to financing arrangements, value of unencumbered assets, which should enable it

to meet its ongoing capital, operating, and other liquidity requirements. The Company will continue to consider various borrowing or leasing options

to maximize liquidity and supplement cash requirements as necessary.

Contractual cash flows

Carrying 

amount
As at 31 March 2021

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted:
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2.33 Financial risk management (continued)

(₹ in million)

6 months

or less
6-12 months 1–2 years 2–5 years

More than

5 years
Total

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities* 124               -                     -                       29                    77                   95             201               

Current liabilities

Lease liabilities 14                 7                        7                           -                   -                 -            14                 

Trade payables 798               798                    -                       -                   -                 -            798               

Other financial liabilities 53                 53                      -                       -                   -                 -            53                 

Total 989               858                    7                           29                    77                   95             1,066            

* Carrying value represents discounted value as at 31 March 2020

(iii) Market risk

Currency risk

Exposure to currency risk

(₹ in million)

USD EURO JPY CHF

Financial assets

  Trade receivables  152                       16                    -                 -            

  Exchange earners foreign currency (EEFC) account -                       -                   -                 -            

Financial liabilities 

  Trade payables 288                       2                      7                     4               

(₹ in million)

USD EURO JPY

Financial assests

  Trade receivables 72                         12                    -                 

  Exchange earners foreign currency (EEFC) account 2                           -                   -                 

Financial liabilities 

  Trade payables 229                       2                      5                     

As at 31 March 2020
As at 31 March 2020

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market

risk comprises two types of risk: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk

exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The

Company is exposed to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

Exposure arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from the Company's operating,

investing and financing activities.

The summary of quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees, as at 31 March 2021 and

31 March 2020 are as below:

As at 31 March 2021
As at 31 March 2021

Contractual cash flows
Carrying 

amount
As at 31 March 2020
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2.33 Financial risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

(₹ in million)

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

For the year ended 31 March 2021

USD 1                        (1)                         1                      (1)                   

EUR -                     -                       -                   -                 

JPY -                     -                       -                   -                 

CHF -                     -                       -                   -                 

1                        (1)                         1                      (1)                   

For the year ended 31 March 2020

USD 2                        (2)                         1                      (1)                   

EUR -                     -                       -                   -                 

JPY -                     -                       -                   -                 

2                        (2)                         1                      (1)                   

USD: United States Dollar, EUR: Euro, JPY: Japanese Yen, CHF: Swiss Franc

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at 31 March 2021 (previous year ended as on 31

March 2020) would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss

by the amounts shown below. This analysis is performed on foreign currency denominated monetary financial assets and financial liabilities

outstanding as at the year end. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of

forecast sales and purchases.

1% depreciation / appreciation in Indian 

Rupees against following foreign currencies:

Particulars
Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
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2.34 Capital management

(₹ in million)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Lease liabilities 124                             138                            

Less : Cash and cash equivalents (464)                            (194)                           

Net debt (340)                            (56)                             

Total equity 1,933                          1,667                         

Net debt to equity ratio (0.18)                           (0.03)                          

2.35 Research and development expenses

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, share premium and all other equity

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the management of the Company’s capital structure is to

maintain an efficient mix of debt and equity in order to achieve a low cost of capital, while taking into account the desirability of retaining

financial flexibility to pursue business opportunities and adequate access to liquidity to mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash

flows.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust

the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts (including lease

liabilities) divided by total capital (equity attributable to owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and

31 March 2020

The amount of research and development expenditure recognised as an expense during the year ended 31 March 2021 is ₹ 116

million (31 March 2020: ₹ 118 million). Capital expenditure incurred on approved Research and Development center during the year ended

31 March 2021 is ₹ 8 million (31 March 2020: ₹ 4 million).
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2.36 Segment information

(₹ in million)

Location
For the year ended

31 March 2021

For the year ended

31 March 2020

Revenue from operation

Domestic 3,449                          3,388                          

Overseas :

Outside India 446                             422                             

   Asia (excluding domestic) 150                             125                             

   America 240                             279                             

   Europe 56                               18                               

Carrying amount of assets

(₹ in million)

Location
As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Domestic 2,933                          2,659                          

Asia (excluding domestic) 61                               29                               

America 90                               43                               

Europe 16                               12                               

Total 3,100                          2,743                          

Additions of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

(₹ in million)

Location
For the year ended

31 March 2021

For the year ended

31 March 2020

Domestic

- Property, plant and equipment 79                               147                             

- Intangible fixed assets 5                                 4                                 

Total 84                               151                             

Segment revenue in the geographical segments considered for disclosure is as follows:-

Revenue within India (Domestic) include sale to customers located within India; and

As per Ind-AS 108, Operating segments have been defined based on the regular review by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker

to assess the performance of each segment and to make decision about allocation of resources. The group’s business activities fall within

single primary business segment, viz, manufacturing of Automobile Components and Parts thereof. Accordingly, disclosures under Ind AS

108, Operating Segments are not required to be made. 

Information about geopraphical segments

Details of revenue from operation at year end, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are as follows:

Revenue outside India (Overseas) include sale of products manufactured in India and outside India to customers located

outside India

Segment assets in the geographical segments considered for disclosure represents assets locate outside India and trade receivables balances

against export sales from India operations.
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2.37 Capital and other commitments

2.38 Contingent Liabilities (₹ in million)

Particulars
As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Claims against the Company disputed by the Company not acknowledged as debt:

a) Value Added Tax/ Central Sales Tax 76                      7                           

b) Bonus payable for financial year 2014-15 as per payment of Bonus Act, 1965 1                        1                           

c) Income tax 12                      12                         

(₹ in million)

For the year 

ended

31 March 2021

For the year 

ended

31 March 2020

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company 7                        6                           

Amount spent during the year 7                        6                           

(₹ in million)

Paid in cash Yet to be paid Total Paid in cash Yet to be paid Total

7                     -                 7                     6                        -                       6                    

Total 7                     -                 7                     6                        -                       6                    

a. Capital Commitments : Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for ₹ 29 million

(net of advances) (31 March 2020: ₹ 8 million)

2.39 During the current year, as required under section 135 of the Act, the Company has spent ₹ 7 million (previous year ₹ 6 million) towards the corporate

social responsibility (CSR activity). Relevant disclosures for amount to be spent vis a viz amount spent during the year are as below :

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Project/ Activity

Promoting Healthcare &

sanitation and preventing

disabilities through Spark Minda

Foundation

Particulars

a. Pursuant to judgement by the Hon'ble Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, it was held that basic wages for the purpose of provident fund, to

include special allowances which are common for all employees. However, there is uncertainty with respect to the applicablility of the judgement

and period from which the same applies and accordingly, the Company has not estimated the impact of the same till March 2019.

Owing to the aforesaid uncertainty and pending clarification from the authority in this regard, the Company has not recognised any provision till

March 2019. Further management also believes that the impact of the same on the Company will not be material.

b. Additionally, the Company is involved in other disputes, lawsuits, claims, governmental and/ or regulatory inspections, inquiries, investigations

and proceedings, including commercial matters that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of business. 

The company believes that none of above matters, either individually or in aggregate, are expected to have any material adverse effect on its

financial statements.
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2.40 Employee share - based payment plans

Summary of vesting and lock-in provisions are given below:

% of options 

scheduled to vest
Vesting date Lock-in period

1 20% 1 April 2018 Nil

2 20% 1 April 2019 Nil

3 20% 1 April 2020 Nil

4 40% 1 April 2021 Nil

The movement in the stock options under the Plan, during the year, is set out below:

Number of 

options

Weighted 

average 

exercise price 

(₹)

Number of 

options

Weighted 

average exercise 

price (₹)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year -                  -                 24,000            50                      

Granted during the year -                  -                 -                  -                     

Exercised during the year -                  -                 (6,000)             50                      

Forfeited during the year -                  -                 (18,000)           50                      

Options transferred to Intercompany -                  -                 -                  -                     

Outstanding at the end of the year -                  -                 -                  -                     

Exercisable at the end of the year -                  -                 -                  -                     

Particulars

Employee stock 

option scheme 

2017

Expected volatility 47.58%

Risk free interest rate 7.15%

Exercise price (₹) 50                       

Expected dividend yield 0.54%

Life of options (years) 4                         

Weighted average fair value of options as at the grant date (₹) 93                       

Under the Plan, each option, upon vesting, shall entitle the holder to acquire one equity share of ₹ 2 each. The options granted will vest gradually over a

period not earlier than one year and not later than five years from the date of grant of such Options. Vesting of Options is a function of achievement of

performance criteria or any other criteria, as specified by the Committee and communicated in the grant letter.

Sr. No.

Vesting Schedule

2.41 The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation

under section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature,

the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year and

expects such records to be in existence latest by due date as required under the law. The management is of the opinion that its transactions with the associated

enterprises are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense

and that of provision for taxation.

For the year ended

31 Mar 2021

For the year ended

31 Mar 2020

Particulars

Stock compensation expense under the Fair Value Method has been determined based on fair value of the stock options. The fair value of stock options was 

determined using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Stock compensation expense in relation to stock options granted to employee of the company is  Nil (31 March 2020 : Rs 0.30 Million)

The members of Minda Corporation Limited (MCL) had approved ‘Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2017’ through Postal Ballot on 10 February, 2017. The

plan envisaged grant of stock options to eligible employees at reserve price equal to the latest available closing price discounted by 50% or such other

percentage as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of MCL.
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Note Particulars

2.42 Related party transactions, as required by Ind AS 24, "Related party disclosures" are given below

A)

Description of relationship Names of related parties

Minda Corporation Limited (MCL)*

Stoneridge Inc. (SI)

Minda SAI Limited (MSL)*

Minda Management Services Limited (MMSL)*

PT Minda Automotive Trading (PTM)

Minda Capital Private Limited (MCAPL)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr. Ajay Kumar Choudhary, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f 19 November 2019)

Mr.  Ajay Kumar, Chief Financial Officer (upto 31 July 2019)

Mr. Chaitanya Mundra, Company Secretary (w.e.f 19 November 2019)

Ms. Kanika Jain Company Secretary (upto 20 April 2019)

B)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr. Ashok Minda, Director

Mr. Shashi Shekhar Sharma, Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. 23 June 2020)

Mr. Naresh Kumar Modi, Director (w.e.f. 8 October 2019 upto 23 June 2020)

*Minda SAI Limited, Minda Automotive Solutions Limited (MASL), Minda Management Services Limited (MMSL) have been merged with 

Minda Corporation Limited (MCL) vide order dated 19 July 2019. 

Entity over which JV Partner (MCL) or Key 

Managerial Personnel and their relatives, its 

holding Company or Key Managerial Personnel 

and their relatives, are able to exercise significant 

influence

Related parties and nature of related party relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Joint Venturers (JV) Partners

Entity over which JV Partner (SI) have 

significant influence

Stoneridge Asia Pacific Electronics (Suzhou) Co. Ltd

Stoneridge Transportation Electronics DI

Related parties and nature of related party relationship with whom no transactions have taken place during the year
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B) Transactions during the year entered with related parties

(₹ in million)

Nature of transaction Year

Minda 

Corporation 

Limited

Minda 

Management 

Services 

Limited

Minda SAI 

Limited

Stoneridge 

Inc.

Stoneridge 

Asia Pacific

PT Minda

Automotive

Minda 

Capital 

Limited

Mr. Ajay 

Kumar 

Choudhary

Mr. 

Chaitanya 

Mundra

Mr. Ajay 

Kumar

Ms. Kanika

Jain

Sales of manufactured goods 2020-21 135               -                 234                15                

2019-20 113               -                 -                 279                -                 21                -               -               -             -                   -              

Sales of Services including job work income 2020-21 1                   -                 -                 

2019-20 1                   1                     -                 -                 -                 -               -               -               -             -                   -              

Purchases of goods 2020-21 10                 -                 5                    341                

2019-20 5                   -                 1                    6                    110                -               -               -               -             -                   -              

Management fees paid 2020-21 37                 -                 25                  

2019-20 21                 16                   -                 8                    -                 -               -               -               -             -                   -              

Rent paid 2020-21 -                 12                

2019-20 -                -                 -                 -                 -                 -               13                -               -             -                   -              

Reimbursement of expenses (received) 2020-21 -                 

2019-20 0                   1                     -                 -                 -                 -               -               -               -             -                   -              

Reimbursement of expenses (paid) 2020-21 39                 -                 17                  0                    1                  

2019-20 27                 1                     5                    6                    -               -               -             -                   -              

Reimbursement of Japan office expenses 

(paid)
2020-21

4                   -                 

2019-20 3                   2                     -                 

Managerial remuneration paid to key 

management personnel
2020-21

-                 
4                  1                 

2019-20 -                -                 -                 -                 -                 -               -               2                  -             3                       -              
Purchase of Services including job work 

Exp
2020-21 1                   -                 -                 

2019-20 -                -                 -                 -                 -                 -               -               -               -             -                   -              

C) Outstanding balances as at year end

(₹ in million)

Account head Balance as on 

Minda 

Corporation 

Limited

Minda 

Management 

Services 

Limited

Minda SAI 

Limited

Minda 

Vietnam 

Automotive

Stoneridge 

Inc.

Stoneridge 

Asia Pacific

PT Minda

Automotive

Minda 

Capital 

Limited

Total

Trade receivable 31 March 2021 28                 -                 -                 -                 70                  -               8                  -               105             

31 March 2020 26                 -                 -                 -                 35                  -               7                  -               69               

Trade payables 31 March 2021 16                 -                 -                 -                 8                    24                -               0                  50               

31 March 2020 15                 -                 -                 -                 13                  67                -               -               95               
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2.43 Employee benefits
  
a) Defined contribution plans

(₹ in million)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Contribution towards 
   -Provident fund 20                            24                                          
   -Employee state insurance 1                              2                                            

b) Defined benefit plans Gratuity

(₹ in million)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 53                            38                                          
Interest cost 5                              3                                            
Current service cost 7                              8                                            
Benefits paid (8)                            (3)                                           
Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation (2)                            7                                            
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 55                            53                                          

Changes in the present value of the plan asset is as follows:
Fair value of plan asset at the beginning of the year 41                            36                                          
Return on plan asset 3                              3                                            
Contributions -                          2                                            
Fund management charge -                          (1)                                           
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation -                          1                                            
Fair value of plan asset at the end of the year 44                            41                                          

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 55                            53                                          
Fair value of plan asset at the end of the year 44                            41                                          
Net liability as at the close of the year (11)                          (12)                                         

Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income:
Current service cost 7                              8                                            
Interest cost 4                              3                                            
Expected return on plan assets (3)                            (3)                                           
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss: 8                              8                                            

Remeasurements income recognised in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial loss/(gain) loss on defined benefit obligation (2)                            7                                            
Actuarial loss/(gain) loss on plan assets -                          1                                            
Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income: (2)                            8                                            

The Company’s employee provident fund and Employee's state insurance schemes are defined contribution plans. The following amounts have been recognised as expense for the year
and shown under Employee benefits expense in note 2.43

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity as a defined benefit plan. The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is
entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days salary (includes dearness allowance) last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service, or
retirement, or death whichever is earlier. The benefits vest after five years of continuous service. The liability of gratuity plan is provided based on actuarial valuation as at the end of each
financial year after considering the amount lying in planed assets maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India .

Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet:
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2.43 Employee benefits (continued)

As at 
31 March 2021

As at 
31 March 2020

Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate 6.80% 6.79%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.80% 6.79%
Expected salary increase rates 6.50% 6.50%

Mortality
100% of IALM 2012-

14
100% of IALM 2012-14

Employee attrition rate
   -Up to 30 years of age 3.00% 3.00%
   -From 31 years of age to 44 years of age 2.00% 2.00%
   -Above 44 years of age 1.00% 1.00%

Note:

Sensitivity analysis:

(₹ in million)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.50%) (4)                          4                                     (4)                            4                                            
Future salary growth (0.50%) 4                            (4)                                    4                              (4)                                           

Maturity profile:

(₹ in million)
As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
1 year 1                            1                                     
2 to 5 years 4                            5                                     
5 to 6 years 10                          1                                     
More than 6 years 39                          47                                   

c) Other long term benefit - Compensated absences

The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

The discount rate is estimated based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation.

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by
the amounts shown below.

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Although the analysis does not take into account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions
shown.

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service of the employees as at the valuation date:

The Company operates compensated absences plan, where in every employee is entitled to the benefit as per the policy of the Company in this regard. The salary for calculation of earned
leave is last drawn salary. The same is payable during the service, early retirement, withdrawal of scheme, resignation by employee and upon death of employee.

The other long- term benefit of compensated absence in respect of employees of the Company as at 31 March 2021 amounts to ₹ 5 millions (previous year ₹ 7 million) and the expense 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the year for the same amounts to ₹ 6 millions (31 March 2020: ₹ 7 millions) [Gross payment of ₹ 4 millions (31 March 2020: ₹ 3 
millions)].






